
CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 

AGENDA 
 

SEPTEMBER 9, 2021 
 

6:00 P.M. 
 

Roll Call. 

 Pledge of Allegiance  

Approval of Minutes: August 12, 2021 

Final Plats 

Consent Agenda 
 
(1) P-0921-35 Ronald Bruno Is Requesting Final Plat Approval For Bruno’s Addition 

To Misty Lane. The Purpose for This Request Is to Amend Lot Lines. The 
Property Is Owned By Ronald Bruno and Is Zoned Vestavia Hills R-1.   

      
(2) P-0921-37 Jones C, LLC Is Requesting Final Plat Approval For Resurvey Of Lots 4 

And 5, Block 1 Glass’s Second Addition To New Merkle. The Purpose 
for This Request Is To Combine Lots. The Property Is Owned Jones C, LLC 
and Is Zoned Vestavia Hills B-2.   

 
(3) P-0921-38 Old Town Center 131 West 33rd Street Holdings, LLC & Old Town Center 

33rd Street Holdings, LLC Are Requesting Final Plat Approval For Olde 
Towne Center Survey. The Purpose for This Request Is to Resurvey Lot 
Lines To Create Two New Lots. The Property Is Owned By Old Town 
Center 131 West 33rd Street Holdings, LLC & Old Town Center 33rd Street 
Holdings, LLC and Is Zoned Vestavia Hills B-3.   

 
Rezoning 
 
 
(4) P-0921-36 Ruby Jo Hallman Benson Is Requesting Rezoning For 3101 Timberlake 

Rd. from Vestavia Hills R-1 to Vestavia Hills B-2 For The Purpose Of 
Commercial Development.  

 
 
 



 
           

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 

MINUTES 
 

AUGUST 12, 2021 
 

6:00 P.M. 
 
 
The Planning & Zoning Commission of Vestavia Hills met in regular session on this date at 6:00 
PM, following publication and posting pursuant to Alabama law. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, 
in coordination with a Proclamation from Governor Ivey and pursuant to orders from the Jefferson 
County Health Department Official requiring social distancing along with limits of attendees, this 
meeting was held with a portion of the Commission digitally attending the meeting via remote 
computer locations utilizing a Zoom.com application. Staff and general public/audience members 
also were invited to attend via Zoom.com following publication pursuant to Alabama law. 
Chairman Barnes called the meeting to order and the City Planner called the roll with the 
following: 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:   Mike Vercher, Chairman 

Ryan Farrell 
      Lyle Larson 
      Rusty Weaver* 
      Hasting Sykes 
      Rick Honeycutt 
      Jonathan Romeo 
 
MEMBERS ABSENT:   Erica Barnes 

David Maluff 
 
OTHER OFFICIALS PRESENT:  Conrad Garrison, City Planner 
      Christopher Brady, City Engineer   
          

    *Member present via Zoom    
      

 
SELECTION OF CHAIRMAN 

 
Mr. Garrison stated that Ms. Barnes was ready to end her chairmanship and that Mr. Vercher had 
agreed to be the next chairman of the commission. 
 
MOTION Motion to select Mr. Vercher as chairman was made by Mr. Weaver and second was 

by Mr. Romeo.  Voice vote as follows: 



 
Mr. Romeo– yes  Mr. Ferrell – yes    
Mr. Honeycutt– yes  Mr. Sykes – yes  
Mr. Larson– yes  Mr. Weaver – yes   
Mr. Vercher – yes 
Motion carried. 
 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Mr. Vercher stated that the minutes of the meeting July 8, 2021 are presented for approval. 
 
MOTION Motion to approve minutes was made by Mr. Weaver and second was by Mr. 

Larson.  Voice vote as follows: 
 
Mr. Romeo– yes  Mr. Ferrell – yes    
Mr. Honeycutt– yes  Mr. Sykes – yes  
Mr. Larson– yes  Mr. Weaver – yes   
Mr. Vercher – yes 
Motion carried. 
 
Final Plats 

(1) P-0821-33 Liberty Park Joint Venture Is Requesting Final Plat Approval For Liberty 
Park Joint Venture Survey. The Purpose for This Request Is to Combine 
Lot and Acreage. The Property Is Owned By Liberty Park Joint Venture and 
Is Zoned Vestavia Hills PB.  

 
Mr. Garrison explained the request and stated the plat would combine lots for future development. 
 
Mr. Vercher opened the floor for a public hearing.   
 
Christy Savage and Diane Baker spoke in opposition. 
 
John Bonnnano, of Liberty Park, stated this is part of ongoing office development in Liberty park 
 
Mr. Vercher stated the Commission had no discretion in the matter and closed the public hearing 
and opened the floor for a motion. 
 
MOTION Motion to approve Final Plat For Liberty Park Joint Venture Survey was made by 

Mr. Weaver and second was by Mr. Larson.  Voice vote as follows: 
 
Mr. Romeo– yes  Mr. Ferrell – yes    
Mr. Honeycutt– yes  Mr. Sykes – abstained  
Mr. Larson– yes  Mr. Weaver – yes   
Mr. Vercher – yes 
Motion carried. 
 
      



(2) P-0821-34 Sergey & Olga Mirov Is Requesting Final Plat Approval For Mirov’s 
Addition To Jacobs Road. The Purpose for This Request Is To Combine 
Acreage Parcels Into One Lot. The Property Is Owned By Sergey & Olga 
Mirov and Is Zoned Vestavia Hills R-2. 

 
Mr. Vercher opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to address the Commission 
concerning these request, Mr. Vercher closed the public hearing and opened the floor for a motion. 
 
MOTION  Mr. Weaver made a motion to approve Mirov’s Addition To Jacobs Road. Second 
was by Mr. Farrel. Motion was carried on a roll call; vote as follows: 
 
Mr. Romeo– yes  Mr. Ferrell – yes    
Mr. Honeycutt– yes  Mr. Sykes – yes  
Mr. Larson– yes  Mr. Weaver – yes   
Mr. Vercher – yes 
Motion carried. 
 
 
Rezoning/Conditional Use Recommendations 
 
 
(3) P-0821-30 Deborah Dye. Et Al. Is Requesting Rezoning For Alta Vista Cir. from 

Shelby County E-1 & Vestavia Hills E-2 to Vestavia Hills R-2 For The 
Purpose Of Compatible Rezoning. 

 
Mr. Garrison explained the background of the request. He stated the zoning change was initiated by 
the City and better reflects the neighborhood. 
 
Mr. Vercher opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to address the Commission 
concerning these request, Mr. Vercher closed the public hearing and opened the floor for a motion. 
 
MOTION  Mr. Weaver made a motion to recommend Rezoning from Shelby County E-1 & 
Vestavia Hills E-2 to Vestavia Hills R-2 for the property located at 2608, 2611, 2612, 2615, 2616, 
2620 & 2627 Alta Vista Circle. Second was by Mr. Honeycutt. Motion was carried on a roll call; 
vote as follows: 
 
Mr. Romeo– yes  Mr. Ferrell – yes    
Mr. Honeycutt– yes  Mr. Sykes – yes  
Mr. Larson– yes  Mr. Weaver – yes   
Mr. Vercher – yes 
Motion carried. 
 
 
(4) P-0821-32 Cahaba Heights United Church Is Requesting Rezoning For 4224 & 4228 

Oakview Ln. from Vestavia Hills Inst to Vestavia Hills R-9 For The 
Purpose Of Townhome Development. 

 



Mr. Garrison explained the background of the request. He stated the proposed plan would allow for 
seven townhomes, as well as improvements along Oakview Ln. 
 
Mr. Vercher opened the floor for a public hearing.   
 
Stan & Emily Daily, 2729 Pruitt Place were concerned about the flooding. 
 
Tom Evans and Della Fancher were concerned about Oakview Ln. 
 
Christopher Brady spoke about the proposed improvements. 
 
Mr. Vercher closed the public hearing and opened the floor for a motion. 
 
MOTION  Mr. Larson made a motion to recommend Rezoning from Vestavia Hills INST to 
Vestavia Hills R-9 for the property located at 4224 & 4228 Oakview Ln. with the following 
condition 

1. Road improvements to be constructed along Oakview 
Ln as presented.  

 
Second was by Mr. Weaver. Motion was carried on a roll call; vote as follows: 
 
Mr. Romeo– yes  Mr. Ferrell – yes    
Mr. Honeycutt– yes  Mr. Sykes – yes  
Mr. Larson– yes  Mr. Weaver – yes   
Mr. Vercher – yes 
Motion carried. 
 
 
 
Conrad Garrison, City Planner



 1 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING 

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 

Date:     SEPTEMBER 9, 2021 
 

 CASE:  P-0921-35 
 

 REQUESTED ACTION:   Final Plat Approval For Bruno’s Addition To Misty 
Lane 

 
    ADDRESS/LOCATION: 1158 Cheval Ln. & 3325 Misty Ln. 

 
 APPLICANT/OWNER:  Ronald Bruno 

 
    GENERAL DISCUSSION:  Plat will amend the shared lot line between Lots 1 & 2. 

Lot 2 is in Jeffco and will also require their approval as well. All existing easements 
will remain. 

 
 STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: 

 
1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 

subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.    

 
City Planner Recommendation:  No recommendation  
 

2. City Engineer Review:  No problems noted. 
 
3. City Fire Marshal Review: No problems noted 
 
4. Building Safety Review: No problems noted  







Fo
r R

ev
ie

w
08

/0
3/

20
21

  9
:1

5:
32

 A
M



 1 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING 

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 

Date:     SEPTEMBER 9, 2021 
 

 CASE:  P-0921-37 
 

 REQUESTED ACTION:   Final Plat Approval For Resurvey Of Lots 4 And 5, 
Block 1 Glass’s Second Addition To New Merkle 

 
    ADDRESS/LOCATION: 3952 Crosshaven Dr. 

 
 APPLICANT/OWNER:  Jones C, LLC 

 
    GENERAL DISCUSSION:  Plat will combine Lots 4 & 5 for the expansion of 

Express Oil Change. Plat and expansion will meet the minimum requirements for 
zoning. 

 
 STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: 

 
1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 

subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.    

 
City Planner Recommendation:  No recommendation  
 

2. City Engineer Review:  No problems noted. 
 
3. City Fire Marshal Review: No problems noted 
 
4. Building Safety Review: No problems noted  











 1 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING 

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 

Date:     SEPTEMBER 9, 2021 
 

 
 CASE:  P-0921-38 

 
 REQUESTED ACTION:   Final Plat Approval For Olde Towne Center Survey 

 
    ADDRESS/LOCATION:  680 & 720 Olde Towne Rd. 

 
 APPLICANT/OWNER:  Old Town Center 131 West 33rd Street Holdings, LLC & 

Old Town Center 33rd Street Holdings, LLC 
 

 REPRESENTING AGENT:  Schoel Engineering 
 

 GENERAL DISCUSSION:  Plat is to divide portions of Lot 7 & 8 into two new lots 
(A & B). Plat is needed due to fire damage and potential rebuilding activities. All 
easements and shared parking agreements remain. The lots are currently zoned B-3. 
Request was previously approved in 07/19 but not recorded. 

 
 STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: 

 
1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 

subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.    

 
City Planner Recommendation:  No recommendation  
 

2. City Engineer Review:  No problems noted. 
 
3. City Fire Marshal Review: No problems noted 
 
4. Building Safety Review: No problems noted  













 1 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING 

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 

Date:     SEPTEMBER 9, 2021 
 

 CASE:  P-0921-36 
 

 REQUESTED ACTION: Rezoning Vestavia Hills INST to Vestavia Hills R-9 
 

    ADDRESS/LOCATION:  Vestavia Hills R-1 to Vestavia Hills B-2 
 

 APPLICANT/OWNER: Ruby Jo Hallman Benson 
 

 GENERAL DISCUSSION: The request rezone property on the corner of 
Timberlake Rd. and Cahaba River Rd. for a proposed Express Oil Change and Tire 
Engineers. The garage would consist of 8 bays and a waiting room. Access to the 
garage would be from Timberlake Rd. The developers will also improve the road 
frontage along Oakview Ln. with a 5’ sidewalk.  

 
 CAHABA HEIGHTS COMMUNITY PLAN: The Community Plan calls for calls 

for these lots to be “Limited Mixed Use”. Limited Mixed Use is stated in the 
Community Plan as having “an emphasis on less intensive commercial uses…”. 
Furthermore, the Blue Lake Area Study only contemplates professional office and 
light commercial/retail. 

 
 STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: 

 
1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 

subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.    

2.  
City Planner Recommendation:  Staff recommends the following 
conditions:  
A. Approval based on site plan and renderings presented; 
B. Vehicles left overnight to be parked in bays or to the side and rear of 

building; 
C. No outside storage of materials, including tires 
  
 

3. City Engineer Review:  I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request.  

 



 2 

4. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 
issues with this request.  
 

5. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request.  

 
 
 















DA
TE
:

PR
OJ

EC
T 

M
AN

AG
ER

:
DR
AW
N:

RE
VI
EW
ED
:

07
/2
8/
21 DR
P JR
I

DR
P

SH
EE

T 
TI

TL
E 

:

EExpress Oil Change

VVestavia Hills, Alabama

PR
OJ

EC
T 

NO
:

Pr
oj

ec
t I

D

RE
VI
SI
ON
S

TTimberlake Drive EOC

SH
EE

T 
NU

M
BE

R:

L SE
QU
EN
CE
:

8
of
11

SC
AL
E:

Sc
al
e

Pl
an

tin
g 

Pl
an

©
 C

op
yr

ig
ht

 2
02

1 
En

vir
on

m
en

ta
l D

es
ig

n 
St

ud
io,

 In
c. 

Dr
aw

in
gs

 s
ha

ll n
ot

 b
e 

re
pr

od
uc

ed
, u

se
d 

or
 s

ol
d 

wi
th

ou
t t

he
 e

xp
re

ss
 w

rit
te

n 
pe

rm
iss

io
n 

of
 E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l D

es
ig

n 
St

ud
io,

 In
c. 
(D
.B
.A
.: 

 E
DS

, I
nc

.)



Sc
al

e

Pr
oj

ec
t n

um
be

r

D
at

e

D
ra

w
n 

by

C
he

ck
ed

 b
y

20
21

 A
ho

 A
rc

hi
te

ct
s,

 L
LC

. 
Al

l R
ig

ht
s 

R
es

er
ve

d.
C

8/4/2021 8:26:25 AM

R
10

1

3D
 R

en
de

rin
gs 21

02
1

07
/0

2/
20

21
AR

C
N

/A

C
O

N
C

EP
TU

AL

Express Oil Change & Tire Engineers

Modified Single Building -Right Hand Oil Change
Vestavia Hills, Alabama

No
.

De
sc
rip
tio
n

Da
te



F.
F.

0"B.
O

.T
.

15
' -

5 
1/

2"

Pi
t L

ev
el

-8
' -

2"

Eq
ui

p.
 P

la
t.

8'
 -

10
 1

/2
"

28' - 1"

Sc
al

e

Pr
oj

ec
t n

um
be

r

D
at

e

D
ra

w
n 

by

C
he

ck
ed

 b
y

20
21

 A
ho

 A
rc

hi
te

ct
s,

 L
LC

. 
Al

l R
ig

ht
s 

R
es

er
ve

d.
C

3/
16

" =
 1

'-0
"

8/4/2021 4:37:55 PM

A2
00

Ex
te

rio
r E

le
va

tio
n 

-
Fr

on
t

21
02

1
08

/0
4/

20
21

AR
C

TA
A

C
O

N
C

EP
TU

AL

Express Oil Change & Tire Engineers

Modified Single Building -Right Hand Oil Change
Vestavia Hills, Alabama

3/
16

" =
 1

'-0
"

1
Fr

on
t E

le
va

tio
n

No
.

De
sc
rip
tio
n

Da
te



F.
F. 0"

B.
O

.T
.

15
' -

5 
1/

2"

Pi
t L

ev
el

-8
' -

2"

Eq
ui

p.
 P

la
t.

8'
 -

10
 1

/2
"

28' - 1"

Sc
al

e

Pr
oj

ec
t n

um
be

r

D
at

e

D
ra

w
n 

by

C
he

ck
ed

 b
y

20
21

 A
ho

 A
rc

hi
te

ct
s,

 L
LC

. 
Al

l R
ig

ht
s 

R
es

er
ve

d.
C

3/
16

" =
 1

'-0
"

8/4/2021 4:37:59 PM

A2
01

Ex
te

rio
r E

le
va

tio
n 

-
R

ea
r

21
02

1
08

/0
4/

20
21 M
B

TA
A

C
O

N
C

EP
TU

AL

Express Oil Change & Tire Engineers

Modified Single Building -Right Hand Oil Change
Vestavia Hills, Alabama

3/
16

" =
 1

'-0
"

1
R

ea
r E

le
va

tio
n

No
.

De
sc
rip
tio
n

Da
te



F.
F.

0"B.
O

.T
.

15
' -

5 
1/

2"

Pi
t L

ev
el

-8
' -

2"

Eq
ui

p.
 P

la
t.

8'
 -

10
 1

/2
"

8' - 0"

Sc
al

e

Pr
oj

ec
t n

um
be

r

D
at

e

D
ra

w
n 

by

C
he

ck
ed

 b
y

20
21

 A
ho

 A
rc

hi
te

ct
s,

 L
LC

. 
Al

l R
ig

ht
s 

R
es

er
ve

d.
C

3/
16

" =
 1

'-0
"

8/4/2021 4:38:01 PM

A2
02

Ex
te

rio
r E

le
va

tio
n 

-
Le

ft

21
02

1
08

/0
4/

20
21

AR
C

TA
A

C
O

N
C

EP
TU

AL

Express Oil Change & Tire Engineers

Modified Single Building -Right Hand Oil Change
Vestavia Hills, Alabama

3/
16

" =
 1

'-0
"

1
Le

ft 
El

ev
at

io
n

No
.

De
sc
rip
tio
n

Da
te



F.
F. 0"

B.
O

.T
.

15
' -

5 
1/

2"

Pi
t L

ev
el

-8
' -

2"

Eq
ui

p.
 P

la
t.

8'
 -

10
 1

/2
"

8' - 0"

Sc
al

e

Pr
oj

ec
t n

um
be

r

D
at

e

D
ra

w
n 

by

C
he

ck
ed

 b
y

20
21

 A
ho

 A
rc

hi
te

ct
s,

 L
LC

. 
Al

l R
ig

ht
s 

R
es

er
ve

d.
C

3/
16

" =
 1

'-0
"

8/4/2021 4:38:04 PM

A2
03

Ex
te

rio
r E

le
va

tio
n 

-
R

ig
ht

21
02

1
08

/0
4/

20
21

AR
C

N
/A

C
O

N
C

EP
TU

AL

Express Oil Change & Tire Engineers

Modified Single Building -Right Hand Oil Change
Vestavia Hills, Alabama

3/
16

" =
 1

'-0
"

1
R

ig
ht

 E
le

va
tio

n

No
.

De
sc
rip
tio
n

Da
te












